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CROI\TYMS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

a) Acronyms

LC

SA

B

KC

C

CI

NH

CO

BO

ICP

IPS S

P

I

MS Es

Os

Laikipia County Enterprise Fund

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Savings and Credit Cooperative Societies

Business Development Offi cers

Kenya Commercial Bank
Credit Reference Bureau

County Integrated Development Plan

National Health Insurance Fund

Chief Officer

Board of Management

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

Public Finance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Coronavirus Disease l9

County Executive Committee Member

Corporate Social Responsibility

Kenya National Bureau of Statistics

Kenya Shillings

Food and Agriculture Organization

Financial Year

Amounts owed to the fund that is recognized but cannot be paid.

Customers unable to meet their financial obligations

When the value of an asset decreases with time. Depreciation is
usually a percentage calculated at the end ofeach financial year

A trade, service, enterprise whose annual tumover is less than five
million shillings.

PSAI

cov
CEC]

CSR

KNB

Kshs

FAO

FY

Fiduciarl

Bad debt

Defaulter

SB

lD- l9

M

S

b) Glossary of Terms

I 
Management The key management personnel who had financial responsibility

Depreciat on

Small enterprisedMicro anr

l
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2. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a) Background infirrmation

Laikipia County Enterprise Fund is established by and derives its authority and accountability from
the Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Bill enacted into law on lgth of June 2014 with u1nend111"nts
onto the same on 28rh June 201 7 and 20 I 8.
The Fund was gazefted vide legal notice number I 8 Act NO. I 0 on l9-06-20 I 4 established by trgal
Notice No. I 0 of 2014.

The Fund is wholly owned by the County Govemment of Laikipia and is domiciled in Kenya.

The Fund's objectives are:
l. To assist micro and small enterprise owners access credit for business capital
2. To promote enterprise development in youth, women, persons with disability and needy

persons.

3. Facilitating a favourable environment for appropriate business and enbepreneurial
growth.

4. Job creation
5. To enhance entrepreneurial skills by providing training in enterprise and business

development
6. Providing technical assistance, in product and market development.
7. Promoting local economic growth by supporting innovators, manufacturers and

developing home based local industries

b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the Fund is to provide affordable credit to SMES.

Vision
A Sustainable Fund Empowering Laikipians for Social Economic Development

Mission
To Offer Accessible and Affordable Financial and Innovative Business Support Services to
Laikipians for Enterprise Development through Resources Mobilization, Cotlaborations, and
Partnerships.

Core Values
Integrity & Professionalism
Equity & Respect for Diversity Transparency & Accountability
Customer Focused
Team Work
Innovation

lv
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c) Administration Committee

d) Key ment Team

e) uciary Oversight Arrangements

ended June 30,2023

Ref Nsne Position
I Joseph Maina Mdoido Chairman
2 Silas Kimathi Mwiti Member representing Youth
.5 Jane Yiampaire Maranga Member representing Women
4 Michael Njama Ngugi Member representing People With Disability
5 Evelyn Wanjiku Mbugua

6 Samuel Njuki Mahiga Ofiicer
rise Devel

Trade, Tourism, Cooperatives &
E
Chief

ment
7 Jacinta Koree Chief Officer Youth and Sports

8 Daniel King'ori Ngumi Chief Officer Finance and Economic Planning

Ref Na MC Position

I lvelrn 
tvtUueua Fund Administrator

2

tr* 
Mokeira

3 Oaleb Mwangi Fund Accountant - Fund Financial Reporting

Ref 'orition Name
I )irectorate of Internal Audit Head of Intemal Audit
2 I ounty Assembly of Laikipia Clerk to County Assembly of Laikipia

3 ce of the Controller of Budget Controller of Budget

4 I )ffice of the Auditor-General Auditor-General

Secretary to Board

Fund Accountant - Fund Operations
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f) Registered Offices

Interim County Headquarter Building
P.O.Box l27l-10400,
County Govemment of Laikipia
Nanyuki, Kenya.

Key Entity and Management (Continued)

g) Fund Contacts

County Govemment of Laikipia
P.O. Box 127 l-l0400,Nanyuki
Tel:0722 396670

h) Fund Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank
Nanyuki Branch
Atc-n7637375156

i) IndependentAuditors

j) Principal Legal Adviser

County Attomey
County Government of Laikipia
Kenyatta Avenue

P.O. Box 1271 - 10400

Nanyuki, Kenya

vl

Auditor Ceneral

OfTice of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya
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3. CO ENTERPRISE FT'IYD BOARD

ear ended June 30,2023

Name Details of quelilications and experience

l. Jod Maina -Chairperson
a

I

Born in 1972

He holds a Bachelors degree of Arts in
Public Administration and Governance,
Diploma in County Governance.

He has over 25 years leadership experience
as the Director NAWASCO, Chairman
NAWASCO, Councillor Municipal
Council of Nanyuki, Chairman Municipal
Council of Nanyuki Environmental
Committee, Member t aikipia District
Health Management Board and Chairman
Kenya National Chamber of Commerce
and Industry taikipia.

2. Mi I Njama-Member PWD representative Bom in 1979

He holds a Diploma in Community
Development. He has vast experience as
the Chairperson laikipia West
Constituency Disability Committee,
Member Gatero Girls High School Board,
Member Laikipia County Education Board,
Board Member Melw4 Kwa Wanjiku and
Ngarenaro Special Schools

3. Jan

,

v

I

Maranga-Member Representing Women

{
\ I

tul

Born in 1977

She holds a Diploma in Community
Development. Has over l7 years leadership
experience as Chairlady Maendeloe ya
Wanawake Laikipia North, Supervisory
Chairperson Loata Sand Cooperative and
Member CDF Committee l,aikipia
North.She has previously worked with
United Nations FAO and t aikipia Women
League.
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rItI

I
4. Silas Kimathi- Member representing youth Born in 1977

He holds a Diploma in Theological Studies.
He is the Chairman Laikipia Bodaboda
Association. He has over 20 years'
experience as transport Chairman in the
Bodaboda industT.

5. Daniel Ngumi- Member Bom in 1984

He is the Accounting Officer Finance and
County Planning. Mr. Ngumi Daniel is
currently the Chief Officer Finance and
County Treasury. Holds Bachelors Degree
in Economics and Public Administration
and Masters Degree in Accounting and
Finance. He is also a CPA(K).
Has previously worked with National
Treasury for six years in various
Departrnents as Chief Accountant; Has also
worked with County Govemment of
Laikipia as Head of County Treasury
Accounting and in County Govemment of
Kiambu as Director of Finance

6. Samuel Njuki Mahiga - Member

t

Bom in 1986.

He holds Master of Science in
Environmental Studies, Bachelor of
Science in Wildlife Management and
Diploma in Wildlife Management.

He Worked as Wildlife and Environmental
Conservation with more than 12 years of
professional experience in Environmental
Conservation, Community Developmen!
Wildlife Ecological Monitoring, Research
and Environmental Social Impact
Assessment. Work in Mt. Kenya Wildlife
Conservancy, William Holden Wildlife
Foundation and Mt. Mountain Bongo
Publicity Programme. Currently the Chief
Officer Trade, Tourism, Enterprise
Development and Co-operatives
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7. J ta Koree- Chief Officer Youth and Sports Born in 1988

She is the Accounting Officer Youth and
Sports in t^aikipia County.She worked as
the Principal research officer in l^aikipia
County Assembly in the year 2022.She also
worked in Laikipia County Assembly as a
senior ICT Officer from 2014 to
2021 .Worked as a research assistant in
KNBS in 2013. Currently Chief Officer
Youth and Sports

Born in 1987

She is the Fund administrator. She Holds a
Bachelors Degree in Business
Administration (Accounts), Certified
Public Accountant of Kenya, Diploma in
Project Managemen! Diploma in Guidance
& Psychological Counselling and Stategic
Management and lradership course.

Pursuing Monitoring and Evaluation
course.

lx
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a
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8. Evolyn Mbugua- Secretary to the Board.

i
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4. KEYMANAGEMENTTEAM

Name Details of qualifications end erperience

l. Evelyn Mbugua- Fund Administrator Bom 1987
She holds a Bachelors Degree in Business
Administration (Accounts), Certified Public
Accountant, Diploma in Project Management &
a Strategic Management and l"eadership course.
Pursuing Monitoring and Evaluation course. She
has over 12 years' experience in Management
Accounting and Administration. She has worked
as an Accountant at Laikipia Nature
Conservancy/Gallmann Memorial Foundation
and as a Manager at Savannah Traders SACCO.

2. Caleb Mwangi -Fund Accountant
(Reporting)

Born 1980

He holds Bachelor's Degee in Commerce
(Finance) and Post Graduate Diploma in Project
management. He is also a Certified Public
Accountant of Kenya (CPA-K). He is currently
the Accountant in charge of Funds financial
reporting. He has an lnternal Auditing
experience ofover l2 years since 2008 to2020.

3. Lydiah Mokeira -Fund Accountant
(Operations)

- 
rF-

Bom 1993

She holds Bachelor's Degree in Commerce.
(Banking and Finance) and is a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA-K) with a history of
Accounting and Risk management for various
Funds within the County Treasury. Currently she
is the Accountant for Laikipia County Enterprise
Fund (LCEF).
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5. FU CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT

It is my leasure to present, on behalfofthe board, the Laikipia county Enterprise Fund financial

s for the year ended 30th June 2023. The financial statements present the financial

perfb ce of the Fund over the past year

Sustain bility

The Fu and its stakeholders are increasingly emphasizing on the need to ensure sustainability for

both its nvestments and its resource mobilization and financing capabilities with an objective of
that the Fund's going concem is secured.

The Fu has conducted an assessment of available options for feasible financing tools that would

assure Fund of its long-term sustainability. The Fund has reviewed its current resource

mobil on strategies and proposed feasible sustainability financing options

stateme

ensunn

Board at

I take thi

There wl

Chief Of

appointn

!d Management Changes

! opportunity to appreciate H.E Govemor Joshua trungu for appointing the LCEF Board.

fre 
changes in the board as the previous term for the Board members had lapsed and new

lcers had been appointed following the transition into the new Administration. The new
I

lents 
were;

Loans

The approved loans to 20 groups to a tune of Ksh 2,230,000 to promote Enterprise

Develop and planned to disburse Ksh I9 million to the current applicants. Actionable steps to

outstanding loans were taken and in{epth discussions on how to undertake the recovery

I Joseph Maina Mdoido Chairman

2 SilalKimathi Mwiti

3 Yiampaire MarangaJane Member representing women

4 Mictad Njama Ngugi Member representing People With Disability

5 elNjuki MahigaSamu Chief Officer Trade, Tourism, Cooperatives & Enterprise Devetopment

6 Jac irlta Koree

7 Danlel King'ori Ngumi Chief Oflicer Finance and Economic Planning

recover t

xt

Member representing Youth

Chief OfTicer Youth and Sports
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was done. It was resolved that the defaulters should be blacklisted in CRB, auctioned and legal

actions be taken.

Appreclation

I take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the County Govemmen!
Stakeholders, management, staffand fellow board members for their continued support which made

us achieve these results.

!:.
Joseph Maina Mdoido

Chairperson of the Board

,"," f,!f l1 hz
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I

6. REIORT OF THE FUND ADMINISTRATOR

6.1 Bacirground
It i: 

TJLp.Je.asu*_lo^Ptl:.nt_the Laikipia County Enterprise Fund financial starements for the year
e.nded 3ptn June 2023. The financial statements present the financial performance ofthe Fund over
the pastlone year.

T:.Pn+rt,t.. Fund is intended to provide access to affordable credit to Small & Micro Enterprises
(SMEs)[o enab]e them compete and graduate into vibrant enterprises. By making credit acceisible
to themlthrough Enterprise Fund the County Government seeks to place women, persons with
disabilitf and.youth at the centre ofjob creation in the county. We belilve that the Enierprise Fund*ill ll"f .a 

significant role in promoting women and youth led -enterprises thereby ieneratinggainful 
telf-employment in the short to medium term. These efforts, coupled with a.oUuit cupacit!

buildin! and mentorship framework will propel the expected impacts into perpetuity and spu, a
culture (f saving.

Thereaftfr, we expect to see women, persons with disability and youth groups taking advantage oftl. p^u-b-lF procurement preferences and reservations, and sustain proactive engagemint in securing
the 30! government contracts for goods and services reserved for thesi ind other eligibli
enterprifs. I therefore encourage women, persons with disability and youth groups to activelylake
up thts oPportunity. and exploit it to its full capacity.

6.2 Sustfinability

The Funf and its stakeholders are increasingly emphasizing on need to ensure sustainability for
both its 

iirvelmelts_and- its resource the mobiiization and financing capabilities wirh an objective
ot.ensurilg that the Fund's going concern is secured.

The Fun{ has conducted an assessment of available options for feasible financing tools that would
assure t{e Fund of its long-term sustainability. The Fund has reviewed its current resource
mobilizafion strategies and proposed feasible sustainability financing options.

i

6.3 Boanfl and Management Changes

e new t{m of Board members had been appointed and changes were experienced in all the Board
positions.l The current board started its operations in October 2018 and was in its final term and
after tranfitioning to the new administration new Chief Officers were appointed. The new members
have vastlleadership and management skills that will assist in achieving-the Fund's objective.

I

6.4 ReviJw of performance

nsO

xlll

Loan- appllcations had been received from I 13 groups of which 20 groups benefited in the firsr
tranche. fhe other applications were vetted and appraised u*aiting Board approval and
disburser{ent. They were issued with Ksh 2,230,000 to boost their business activities which
included {oat rearing, table banking, chicken rearing, livestock fattening and general trading among
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Lo-an repayments from previous tranches had been affected by the ongoing Covid-19 disaster after
effects and many enterprises had either closed down or unable to meet their obligations. The 2022
Elections and draught also affected the income ofthese enterprises causing dehyld payments. The
Management took steps to ensure that those loans were being recovered-through numerous calls
and visits, signing of promissory letters and by engaging a debt collector. The resfonse was positive
and previously dormant loans became active. The Board resolved that further.iurur", to be taken
to recover the loans in totality. The defaulters will be blacklisted at Metropol CRB, auctioned and
legal actions taken to those non-cooperative defaulters.

o Income

During the year, the Fund revenues amounted to Kshs 8,333,142 from the interest income and
principal repayment. The opening cash balance was Kshs 15,065,203 at the beginning ofthe year
and Ksh 19,923,409 at year end from the previous year.

' SMES Training

A total of 305 enterprises were trained across the County and an Annual Forum of beneficiaries and
prospects was held on l2s May 2023.The Fund continued to train SMES on:

Entrepreneurial skills
Record keeping, marketing and financial management
Linking with other departments for technical training from
lnnovation.
Business Continuity
Savings and Investments
Conflict resolution
Introduction to table banking concept for merry go round.

other departments like

The Fund has also managed to distribute more apptication forms and sensitise members of the
Public through various entities:

. Ward credit officers

. Laikipia County Govemment Website
o Social media platforms (Facebook)
o County Business Development Ofiicers
o Administrationdeparhnent
. CDA's -Education deparEnent
o Public participation meetings

o Constraints

The effects of weather uncertainties, Covid-19 pandemic and political uncertainties continued to
result into an increasing high default rate, Iow number of applicants and being costlier in terms of
fund operations.

I

2
3

4
5

6
7

xtv
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6.5 Futu outlook

Despite challenges exPerienced during this Financial Year including lack mobilitY and

inadequa operation's budget the Fund is looking forward to bu ild a robust and sustainable Fund

with a ivated workforce and structures that enhances efficiencY and effectiveness in the service

delivery Fund looks forward to continued suPPort from the County Govemment and other

devel partners to aid in the realization of its mandate

The ement is also looking forward to exp loration of new oPPortun ities through acquiring of

at will also helP in efficiencY and automation of records. KeY policies will also be
software
factored

Fund
Laiki

UNt)
TIAN 6GFR

?6
?s2j

the next financial year to ensure smooth running ofthe Fund

6.6 Risk ragemeDt Strategies
an integral Part of its oPerations, focusing on strategles

The made the Risk Management PolicY

to mln impacts of risks towards achieving its stategic goals and maintaining its financial

stability. The initial stage was to have a win - w in situation where the board led by the chairman

made en days follow uP to all the fund beneficiaries and made a mutual agreement on the overall

benefits the fund.

6.7 Con lusion

I take th opportun ity to express mY sincere gratitude and aPP reciation to the County Govemment'

Board bers, staff and stakeho lders for their continued support which made us Progress

positive towards the growth of the Fund and achieving our mrsslon

6lSE o6

o

m
2i

\/,

aI

m n rator
Counfy EnterPrise Fund
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7. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE
PREDETERMINED OBIECTTVES

AGAINST THE COI]NTY FTJND'S

Introduction
Section 164 (2) (f1 of the PFM Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each financial year, the
Accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each County Govemment entity
Govemment entities in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the public Sector
Accounting Standards Board includes a statement of the county govemment entity's performance
against predetermined objectives.
The key development objectives ofthe Laikipia county Enterprise Fund pran are:

l. To assist micro and smalr enterprise owners access credit for business capitat
2' To promote enterprise development in youth, women, persons with disability and needy

p€rsons.

Facilitating a favourable environment for appropriate business and entrepreneurial growth.
Job creation
To enhance entepreneurial skills by providing training in enterprise and business
development

Providing technical assistance, in product and market development.
Promoting local economic growth by supporting innovators, manufacturers and developing
home based local industries

Progress on attainment of Strategic development objectives

Below we provide the progress on attaining the stated objectives

t.cIDP O C

3

4

5

6

7

Program Objective Outcome Indicetor Performance

Enterprise Fund Increased
employment
opportunities

To disburse and
ensure recovery
of loans(300
enterprises)

No. of
enterprises
tunded/
Individuals

20 groups funded
during FY
2022t2023.

xvl
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Progrems and sub p rams performance reDort for the period endins 30rh June 2023 (Non-Financial information )
Programe :LAIKIPIA ENTERPRISE FUND

Key outputDeliverySUDrt(\rl, t(Alvl l, w 2022tt3 RemerksKPIs

Target Actual Variance

Enterprise
Fund

Enterprise
Fund
section

l.To disburse
and ensure
recovery of
loans (to 100-
individuals
and 200
groups)

180

groups and
100

Individual
entreprene
urs

-No of
applications
received
-number of
beneficiari
es

approved
by board

-Fund 200
Groups

-Fund
100
individual
entrepren
eurs

l.Applications
received and
appraised:
I 13 group
applications received
of which 20 were
funded and 18 groups
had insufficient
documentation. The
rest wer€ appraised
for approval in the
next month

There was an

improvement from the
previous year though the
target was not precisely
archived due to the
elections as most
residents wene

unavailable.

2. Training of
SMES on
entrepreneuri
al skills and

Proper
records
management

of Capacity
building
to 500
SMES

Trained a total of 305
groups and held I
annual forum for
beneficiaries and
prospects.

195 SMEs

LAIKIPIA
COLTNTY
ENTERPRISE
FUND

Target was not achieved
due to after effects of
corona virus, draught
and being an

electioneering period

3.Ensure
recovery of
loans from
entriepreneurs

Percentage
of loans
recovered
from the
revolving
tund

Recover
90% of
funds
issued on
both
individua

and

Total loan
portfolio is
22% on
groups

and

xvll

Individual target was not
achieved as the Fund did
not have sufficient funds
to disburse to all. The
Board resolved to halt
individual applications
as they were too risky as

experienced in the prior
years and the funds were
inadequate.

No
SMES
trained

Recovered:
Loans
Groups
individuals
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ls and
groups

40%
individuals

Total
combined
portfolio is
27%

most businesses had
closed
down or unable to meet
their financial
obligations. Demand
letters were issued by a

debt collector.

xvlll

for the year ended June 30,2023
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8. COR PORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

h wt".tiog.
I

fre year under review there were 4 board and committee meetings held and adoption of
feetings was done due to the rapid spread of the coronavirus which prompted to

fon of physical meetings.

ion Plan

to section 5 of Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act 2014 the board members shall serve

of three years and may be renewed for one further term after which the person shall

the board for at least two years before being eligible for reappointment to the board.

ntment and Removal of Member of the Board

This is c rly stipulated in Section 6 (i) of Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act 2014 and schedule

on Prov on as lo the conduct ofbusiness and affairs ofthe board

8.4 Rol and Functions of The Board

shall be responsible for

(a) viding overall management and oversight ofthe Fund

(b) dvising the Executive Member on the appropriate guidelines and procedures for better

anagement ofthe Fund;

Boa I

During tl
online n
cancellal

(c)

(d)
ecutive Member;

(e) dvising the Executive Member generally on implementation of this Act

pproving disbursements or utilization of the Fund;

paring annual report on the implementation of the Fund for transmission to the

Annual Report

Section f1t; of tle Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act 2014 stipulates clearly the functions of
the board.

8.5 Boaid Induction and Training, Board and Member Performance, Conflict of Interest,
Board *muneration, Ethics and bonduct / Governance Audit

The boa{d has been inducted; no conflict of interest noted. Remuneration is guided by l^aikipia
Public Sprvice Board while taking in to account recommendation by Salaries Remuneration
Commislion of Kenya.

xlx
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8.6 Conllict of inter€st

Board members and employees maintain public confidence in the objectivity of their service by
preventing and avoiding situations that could give the appearance ofa conflici of interest o, ,.ruit
in a potential or actual conflict of interest.

8.7 Governance, Ethics and Conduct

All the appointed board members are obligated to sign a Code of conduct and ethics. The Code
sets out expectations for individual behaviour necessary to meet these standards and includes
requirements and guidance to help carry out role with integrity and in compliance with the law.
By exemplifring the ethical behaviours and Board values described in the Code, the board will
continue to uphold Article l0 of the Constitution of Kenya on National Values and principles of
Govemance and Chapter 6 on t eadership and Integrity.

The fund is govemed by a board and administered by the Fund Administrator. The Fund
Administrator reports functionally to the Board and administratively to the Chief Officer of the
department of Trade, Tourism and Cooperatives.

xx
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

lonal Performance

lontrnue 
to play a major role in the development of the county economy. During the

fion 
and review of the c.l.D.P. it was noted that one of the issues of SMES was inadequate

capital. To address this issue, the county Govemment created the Fund with a pnme
of availing cheap and affordable credit to SMES with the purposes that are in tandem

innovatir

sector, !
strength(

Laikipia c.l.D.P. Key flagship areas where enterprises are expected to play a role include;
ons, value addition to products and services, manufacturing, financial services, Boda-boda
ryholesale and retail trade. lt was envisaged that Enterprises will be assisted and
tned to brand and market county products for both local and national markets.

The Fun

county. I

strategic

include I
The Fun

livestock

To add s the issue of food shortage and unemployment, deliberate affirmative action through
this pro me has been taken in a professional manner that will encourage groups in agri-
business sector to develop their skills so as to invest back in the economy. The partnershi p will

Operati
SMES c

formulal

working
objectivr

with the

focus on

providin

also foc
colnm u

ey areas of promoting professional extension services, imparting agribusiness skills and
financial support to the development of the identified value chain. The programme will

more on the youth and women groups as the most disadvantage people in the
The purpose of using groups is to enable the Fund support the vatue chain groups in

the rural s that are not registered

rntext the Fund will organize events to educate, inspire, connect and engage SMES in
'e sector and also provide them with business links to value chain development related
ions. This will enhance development of sustainabte agribusiness in the county.

io Laikipia county Enterprise Fund amendm ent 2017 the Fund is headed by a Fund

fator 
who implements the Boards' decision and policies through action plan; and the team

Ilarly to review and ensure the Boards objectives are achieved effectively and efficiently.

ln this co

agricultul
organizati

Pursuant

Administ
meets regr
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Financial Performance of the fund

z Disbursemcnt of the fund

b Disbursement Sub-Coun

Group Loans Individual Loans

Year No Amount Year No Amount Totals

2015t20t6 66 3,300,000 2015t2016 3,300,000

2016t2017 l7 850,000 2016t2017 850,000

20t7t20t8 4 1,454,464 20t7/2018 I,541,731

2018t2019 t63 r 4,860,000 2018t20t9 163 15,626.000

2020/202t
202012021 14,240,000

202y2022 46 10,090,000
202U2022 5 r,620,000 r r,710,000

2022/2023 20 2,230,000
2022t2023 2,230,000

TOTALS 381 47,024,464 168 17a46,000 64270,464

Sub
County

20t5/20t6 20t6/20t7 20t1/20t8 20t tt/20 t 9 2020DO2t 202t t2022 2022t2023

Laikipia
West

l,650,000 600,000 13,335,000 4,I 50,000 5,340,000 25,075,000

Laikipia
East

l,r 00,000 I,066,339 t 2,931,000 8,740,000 4,560,000 2t,647339

Laikipia
North

550,000 388, r 2s 4,220,000 l,350,000 l ,8 r 0,000 2,230,000 10,54E,125

Totals 3J0O,m0 E50,m0 t,4s4,4U l4r{,000 il,710,m0 2130,000

xxu

30,486,000

7t 14,240,000

TOTA LS

2s0,000

30,486,m0 u270,464
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LOAIIS DISBURSEMENT BY S['B-COI.]NTY

H
r LAI(IPIA WEST

I.AIKIPIA EAST

' TAIKIPIA NoRTH

LAIKIPIA WEST

39%

20t5n6 2016fi7 2017/rt 20ta19
Groups

20tEng
lndivldurl

2020n1
Groups

2020nt
Indivldua! 202u22 2022r23

WOMEN )E0 Itt 65 IJEO 8t 329 I 710 254
MEN 397 74 62 96 E2 4 403 45
TOTALS EN tfr r63 trfB

ffi m

m w,r3 M) s 2D

A 0 I E it I
PWDs

rc I 37 l3 0 401 39 306 35E 163
@

IET
E E r r E r E r

E@rr@r @
I
I

The focuses on addressing the issue of unemployment and food shortage fromperspective by encouragrng enterprises to develop their business managementskills and viding affordable working capital so as to invest back in the Count5r's economy. Thepro also focuses more on the youth, people with disabilities and women groups being themost d vantaged people in the community. The purpose of using groups is to enable the Fundnomic status of the residents of L,aikipuplift the

xx l

ia in the rural areas and impact larger numbers

rP

\

-ffi

Q Borrcwers' Analysis

170



Laikipia County Enterprise Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

IO. EIWIRONMENTAL AIYD SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The Enterprise Fund was formed through an Act of County Assembly of Laikipia that was enacted
in20l4. Further Amendments have been done to the act in 2017 and 2018 respectively. The Fund
is managed by a board comprising of 7 members with the Fund Manager being an ex- oflicial
member and secretary to the board.

The objectives ofthe Fund are;

o To facilitate access to credit for business capital to Small and Micro Enterprises for them
to be competitive and growth to big enterprise

. To promote enterprise among the youth, women, persons with disabilities and needy
Persons

o To enhance enterprise skills development
. To promote local economic growth

Fund Regulatory Framework

i) Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act 2014 and Amendments 2017,2018 &2021
ii) Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Regulations 2020
iii) Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Credit Policy and Operations Manual.
iv) Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Strategic Plan

The Enterprise Fund is a revolving fund and it provides affordable credit to SMEs at an annual
interest rate of 6Yo. The Fund carries out capacity building for enterprises within Laikipia County
through training of both beneficiaries and prospective beneficiaries. It also assists the enterprises
to register formally, mechanize and meet the required standards thus increasing job opportunities
and income for the society. Through new jobs and higher income, the community is able to enhance
their socioeconomic lifestyles and afford medical care like NHIF. The Fund has enabled start-ups
to rise in the society through business plans, advise and financial support.
The Fund has received a total of Ksh 48,802,107 from the County Govemment of Laikipia since
inception.

Sustainability stratery and profile
The Laikipia County Enterprise Fund is keen on posterity and the management has activated
various sustainability strategies but not limited to,
o Ensuring compliance of laws, regulations, policies and set standards.
. Working towards a Strategic Plan for the Fund.
o Working towards developing of a Risk Register that will ensure risks are identified and

mitigated timely.
o Continuous capacity building of enterprises within L,aikipia

xxlv
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Empl welfare
The I-a ipia county Enterprise Fund relies on the counw Public Service Board that is charged
with

The em loyees are continually trained on innovation, enterprise development and manufacturing
by the

public
unty Government of L^aikipia. They are also actively involved during exhibitions and

gagements

Marke place practices
The F

that all

Ente

The Fu

Dis of Assets Act 20t 5 which gives guidelines on procurement matters

hiring and empowering of employees in the county. The Fund has been allocated
s who serve the l5 wards and they are involved in enterprise development, trainings and

ministration

ensures that it adheres to set laws, policies and regulations. The Management ensures
enterprises funded meet the required threshold as per the laws and the Laikipia county
Fund also practices responsible marketing and advertisement practices.
also adheres to the 3o/o expenses rule and ensures compliance of Procurement and

xxv

Commtnity Engagements
The Laikipia County Enterprise Fund continually promotes enterprise development through
training$ within the community and identify new potential enterprises. The Fund has been involved
in publiO €ngagements to create awareness of the Fund as well as gather information on emerging
enterprise needs.
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rI. R.EPORT OF THE BOARI)

The members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2023 which show the state ofthe Fund affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities ofthe Fund are to provide access to affordable credit for enterprises.

Results

The results ofthe Fund for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page I to 6.

Members

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page iv.

The changes in the Board during the financial year are as shown below:

New Board members were appointed as follows:

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

$(b \31

Joseph Maina Mdoido Njogu
Chair of the County Enterprise Fund Board

I Joseph Maina Mdoido

2 Silas Kimathi Mwiti Member representing Youth

J Jane Yiampaire Maranga Member representing women

4 Michael Njama Ngugi Member representing People With Disability

5 Samuel Njuki Mahiga Chief Officer Trade, Tourism, Cooperatives & Enterprise Development

6 Jacinta Koree Chief Officer Youth and Sports

7 Daniel King'ori Ngumi Chief Officer Finance and Economic Planning

xxvt
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12. STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 167 of the PFM Act,20l2 requires that, at the end of each financial year, the Administrator
of a County Public Fund established by Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act 2014 shall prepare
financirl statements for the Fund in accordance with the standirds and formats prescribed'by the
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

The Administrator of the County Public Fund is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the Fund's financial statements, which give a true and fair view of thi state of affairs of the Fund for
and as 0t the end ofthe financial year ended on June 30,2022. This responsibility includes: (i)
Maintaioing adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be
effectivc throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining prope. u".ornting records, which disclose
with rea$nable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund; (iii) designing, implementing
and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentaiion of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or
fra-ud; (iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe Fund; (v) selecting and apptying appropriate accounting
policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Adrninistrator of the County Public Fund accepts responsibility for the Fund's financial
statemerfs, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by
reasonahle and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with flpSAS), and iniie ru*..
required by the PFM Act, 2012 and Laikipia County Enterprise Fund. The Adminishator of the Fund
is of the opinion that the Fund's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Fund's
transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the Fund's financial position as
at that date. The Administrator further confirm the completeness of the accounting records
maintained for the Fund, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Fund's financial
statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund will not remain a
going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approv{l of the f,nanciar statements 
:t, i,,t) 1.,, ,.

The Fund t financial statements were approved by the Board on . -. :i j( . .;. 1 .: ind signed on its behalf
by:

SEP 2023

a

of Laikipia County Enterprise Fund

rl':
Evelyn Mbugu
Ad ministrator
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GEIIERAL
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HEADQUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box loo84-o01oo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDTTOR-GENERAL ON LAIKIPIA COUNTY ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

A. Repo( on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are faifly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accouilting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the lfinancial statements.

B. Repo( on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
complifnce with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guideliFes and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficierft, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achievps value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

I

C. Repor( on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which bonsiders how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operatlons. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
managBment environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those fharged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity. i

I

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant lfws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governan(e systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year undei review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report,,when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT PN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified ppinion

I have audlted the accompanying financial statements of Laikipia County Enterprise Fund
set out on pages 1 to 40 , which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, N23, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

Report olii#iAilonGenerat on taikipio County Enterprise Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023



aassets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Laikipia County Enterprise Fund as at 30 June, 2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act,
2014.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0. Unsupported Provision for Non-Performing Loans

The statement of financial position and Note 13 to the financial statements reflect
receivables from exchange transactions amounting to Kshs.4,663,198. This includes
provisions for bad and doubtfuldebts of Kshs.5,217,919 as at 30 June,2023. However,
no schedule or provision policy to support the balance was provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.4,663,198 could not be confirmed.

2.0 Long Outstanding Transfers from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position and Note 14 to the financial statements reflect long-
term receivables from non-exchange transactions amounting to Kshs.17,374,000. These
were transfers due from the County Executive that had remained outstanding since
2021l2o22financialyear. Recoverability of the amount is doubtful. However, no provision
for doubtful debts for the same was made in these financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of long{erm receivables from non- exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.17,374,000 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Laikipia County Enterprise Fund
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Report of the Auditor-General on Laikipia County Enterprise Fund for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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Emphasis of Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Issues

ln the report of the previous year, one (1) issue was raised under the Report on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources and one (1) issue on Report
on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance. However,
although Management has indicated that some issues have been resolved, the matters
remained unresolved as the Senate and County Assembly are yet to deliberate on the
Report for 202112022 financial year.

My opinion is not modified on the effects of the above matter.

Key Audlt Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professionaljudgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Gonclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnslitutions (lSSA|) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Report of thel4uditor-General on Laikipia County Enterprise Fund for the year ended 30 June, 202 3
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As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion



Basis for Conclusion

Lack of Debt Management Policies

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of controls on loan recoveries could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
incompliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Laikipia County Enterprise Fund for the year ended 30June,2023
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The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.4,663,198 as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. However,
Management has not established debt management policies.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.



Aud itor-General's Resoonsi bi! ities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition, to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing lheir assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls rnay not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Fund policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professionalskepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Report ofthe Aiditor-General on Laikipio County Enterprise Fund for theyear ended 30June,2023
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a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain
its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

a

o

a

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS

Nairobi

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Laikipia County Enterprise Fund for the year ended 30June,2023
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2022-2023 202t-2022Note

Kshs Kshs

Revcnt re From Non-Erchange Transactions

Transfc rs From the County Govemment 2 r 0,000,000

10,000,000

Revent te From Exchange Transactions

Interesl Income 4 r 33,800 I,405,200

Total I levenue 133,800 l1,40sr00

Erpent ieS

Use of goods and services 7 1,435,445

Deprec ation and Amortization Expense 20,715 29,593

Provisi rn for Bad Debts 26 5,217,9r9 940,009

Total I ,xpenses 6,674,079 2J69Js9

Surplu s/@elicit) For The Period (6,540279) 9,035,841

II

II

I
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t4. sTA ME,NT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The ntin es and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part
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Caleb Mwa
Fund Accountant
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Note 2022-2023 202t-2022

Kshs Ituhs
Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents t2 15,065,203
Receivables from Exchange transactions l3 4,663,198 15,850,459
Total Current Assets 24,5E6,607 30,915,662
Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment l8 48,336 69,051
Long Term Receivables from Non-Exchan ge Transactions l4 17,374,000 17,374,000

t7,422)36 17,443,051
Total Assets 48358,712
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Loans Overpayment 25 t90,207
Accounts and other payables from exchange transactions 2t 154,300
Total Liabilities 344,507 153,998

Net Assets 41,664,435 48204,7r4
Revolving Fund 46,590,840 46,590,840
Accumulated Surplus r,613,864
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 41.,664,425 48204,704

15. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

The accounting pol ry notes to these financial statements form an integral part
of the financ financial statements were approved on _ 2023
and signed

2 6 SEP 2023)
\)

/ \

Caleb Mwa
Fund Accountant

ICPAK Member Number: 10187

>,

'-'t(J

Evelyn Mbugua

2

Administrator of the Fund

t9,923,409

42,009,942

r 53,998

(4,926,415)

entity
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Revolving
Fund

Revaluation

Reserre
Accum ulated

surplus Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs

Balanc As Al I July 2021 46,590,940 (7,421,977) 39,169,963

Surplur

Period

(Deficit) For the

9,035,941 9,035,941

Balanc As At 30 Jru;l,e 2022 46,590,940 1,613,964 48204,704

Balanc As At I Jlly 2022 46,590,940 1,613,864 48204,704
Surplus

Period

cit) For the

(6,,540,279) (6,540,279)

Bala ncr As At 30 June 2023 46,590,840 (4,926,415) 41,664,,425

Laiki County Enterprise Fund
Annu Re rt and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

t6. sT NT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The does nol mainlain reserves
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17. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Note 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

l3 47 t,687 721,450

Total receipts 471,687 721,450

Payments

7 t ,28 1 ,145 t,399,757

Payment of Accounts payables 26,000

I,281,145 1,425,757

3l (704307)

Nel cash flows used in financing activities

Cash flows from Investing activities

Loans overpayment
28 36,209

Proceeds from loan principal repayments r3 7 ,861,455 12,024,162

Loan disbursements paid out l3 (2,230,000) (r 1,710,000)

Net cash flows used in investing activities 5,667,664 415,912

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash
Equivalents 4,858r06 (288Jes)

l2 t5,065,204 15,3s3,599

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2023 l2 19,923,410 t 5,065,204

4

lnterest income received

Use of Goods and Services

2t

Total payments

Net cash llows from operating activities (809,458)

l0l ,750

Cash and cash equivalents at I July 2022
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IE. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Budget notes

l. The difference between original &final budget was because of reallocatiow during the supplementary budget.
2. The utilisation of interest income was 9%, the variance was as a result of issuance of loans below the amount planned for3. The loan disbursemenl was al 50/6 due to late establishment of new board members.
4. There were no transfers receivedfrom the county government.
5. The performance dffirence on the ulilisation on use of goods and seryices was due to lare board constitution.

5

Actual on Performance o,Original Adjustments Final budgetDescription
uuuEEr comparable basis dilTerence Utiliz:rtion
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

a b c=(a+b) d e =(c-d) Fd/crl00
Revenue Kshs IGhs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Transfers from County
Government (24,041,880) 3,9s8, 120 (3,958, r 20) 0%

Interest Income 5,400,000 5,400,000 471,687 (4,928,3 l3) 9oto

Opening Bank balance 15,065,203 15,065,203 15,065,203 100%
Receivables from non-
exchange transactions 17,374,000 t7,374,000 ( r 7,374,000) lon

Receivables from exchange
transactions r 5,850,459 r 5,850,459 (7,989,004) 509/o

Total Revenue 81,689,662 (24,041,880) 57,647,782 23J98J4s (34,249,437)

Use ofGoods and Services 2,450,690 (721,256) 1,729,433 1,456,160 (273,273) 849/o

Loan Disbursement 45,000,000 4s,000,000 2,230,000 (42,770,000) 50/o

Total Expenditure 47,450,690 (43,043,273)

(23J20,624) 10,918"349 19,712,185

28,000,000

7,861,45s

Expenses

(7212s6) 46,729.433 3,686,160
Surplus For The Period 34,238,972 9,793,937
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6. The performance difference on the utilisation of receivables from exchange transactions was due to dffirent loan tenures

Reconciliation between St8tement of Financial Performsnce aDd Statement of Comperison Budget and Actusl Amounts

DESCRIPTION

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL

PERFORMANCE/
POSITION

STATEMENTOF
COMPARISON
BUDGET AND

ACTUALAMOUNTS

VARIANCE REMARKS

RE\rENUE

Interest lncome r33,800 47t,687 (337,887)
Interest Income received on
loans issued in prior periods

PAYMENTS

Provision for doubtful debts 5,2t7,9t9 0 5217,919
New p r ov is io n for doub tfa I
debts

6
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19. NdTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
i

l. Genlral Information

Laikipfa Countl'Enterprise Fund is established by and derives its authority and accountability
l

from tte laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act enacted into law on 196 of June 2014 with

amendtfnens onto the same on 28th June 2017 and 2018.

The Fufrd was gazetted vide legal notice number l8 Act No.l0 on l9-06-2014 established by

Legal Notice No.l0 of 2014 Act. The entity is wholly owned by the county Govemment and

is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is to promote enterprise development by
providihg affordable credit to SMEs.

2. Statlmett of compliance and basis of preparation

The Frfrd's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with
Intemdional Public Sector Accounting Standards 0PSAS). The financial statements are

presentfl in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency ofthe Fund. The

accounling policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financial

statemdrts have been prepared on the basis ofhistorical cost, unless stated otherwise. The cash

flow s$lement is prepared using the direct method. The financial statements are prepared on

accruallbasis.

3. Adoption ofnew and revised standards

(i) N*t a_n_d ayended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet efective in the year
en*d 30 June 2023

Standard Effective date and impact

4l: Financial

ents

IPSA

Ins The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

Applicable: I't January 2023

7
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EfTective date and impact

'Appl ying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics ofthe asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope ofthe guidance.

The model develops a strong link benveen an Entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatnent for

instruments held as part of the risk management strat€gy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l'r January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users ofthe financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity;

O) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from IPSAS

41, Financial

Instruments

Applicable: I't January 2023

Standard

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

8
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Stan rd ffective date and impactE

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

S

provementsOther

to IP t IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financiar Information about the Generar

Governmenl Seclor.

Amendments to referto the latest System ofNational Accounts (SNA

2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benelits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 292 Financiat instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IpSAS handbook as it is now
superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from ld January 2023.

Applicable ld January 2023

Ellective date and impact:

IPSAS 43 Applicable I't January 2025

(ii) and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effeclive in the year

9

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accruar basis IpSAS
which were inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

enddd 30 June 2023.

Standard

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is
to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a
manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This information
gives a basis for users offinancial statements to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and

cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measurre and present

information on right of use assets and Iease liabilities.
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Standard

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable Iil January 2025

The Standard requir€s,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

l0

ElTective date ond impact:

(iii)Early adoption of standards
The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financialyear 2022-2023
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l. Sigpificant Accounting policies

a) Rcfenue recognition

i. Relenue liom non-exchange transactions

Translrs from other government entities

Revenqes from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair
value alrd recognized on obtaining control ofthe assei (cash, goods, services and property) if
the tratsfer is free from conditions and it is probable that thi economic benefis or service
potenthl related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions

Interelt income

Interesl income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estimatpd future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset,s net
garrying amount. The method appiies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine
interest income each period.

Dividends

Divide$ds or similar distributions-must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's
right tolreceive payments is established.

Rentallincome

Rental 
fncome arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

strarghtflrne basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Bu{get information

The orig
2022. Su

inal budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the County Assembly on 29s June
bsequent revisions or additional appropn ations were made to the approved budget in

accordance with
appropriations are
approvals in order

specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
to conclude the final budget Accordingly, the Fund recorded no additional

appropfations

m" .nlry', t
on theFY 2022-2023 budget following the governing body's approval

disclo tn
udget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
usrnS a lassification based on the nature of expenses in the statement offinancial performance,
where the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were
recast m the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis the approved budget. A comparis on of budget and actual amounts, prepared ona
com le basis to the approved budget, is then presented i
budget d actual amounts

ll

n the statement of comparison of



Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also
made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of
the linancial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under section l8 ofthese financial statements.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specifi" useful livis and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangible Assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internatly generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

e) Investment property

Laikipia County Enterprise Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Investment proPerties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the
time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-
day maintenance of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-
exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over
one-year period or investment prop€rty is measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognised through surplus or deficit. Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is recognized in the
surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

t2
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Summtry of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

f) Financial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and
financiql liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model
for finalrcial assets. Ifre entity does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new
hedge accounling rules have no impact on the entity's financial slatements. A financial
instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equi$r instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity measures a financial
asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or
financiql liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly
attributdble to the acquisition or issue ofthe financial asset or financial liability.

Financhl assets

Classiflcation of financial assets

The entlty classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the
entity's lnanagement model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is
held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contracfual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstandng. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held
within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows a1d selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely paynents ofprincipal and interest on the principal
amount gustanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair vatue through surplus or deficit
unless itris measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity
has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity
instrumflts.

Subsequ

Based on

assets int
value are

criteria br

ent measurement

ithe business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial
I amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair
presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

!ing met.

l3
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Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for coltection of contractual cash flou,s u,here those cash flows
represent solely paynents of principal and interest. and that are not designated at fair value
through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that
is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/
equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity
manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of
the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the
year end.

Impairment

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated
with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The
entity recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and
significant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are
set out.

t4
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Signlfi qant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financlal liabilities

Classiflcation

The enlity classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for
financidl liabilities measured through profit or loss.

g) tnventories

Inventofy is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost olthe inventory
is its fai value at the date of acquisition.

Costs i{curred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as folloWs:

> nanrl materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

> Finithed goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion
of {nanufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but'excluding
bon[wing costs

After irftial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Howev{r, to the extent that a class ofinventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nomina.t charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement
cost.N{ realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operaiions, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,
or distdbution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course ofoperations ofthe Entity.

h) frovisions

Provisi{ns are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result o{a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or servi+€ potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of thc {motrnt of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbu$ed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is iecognized as a
separat! asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provisiofr is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

i)

Social

ial Benefits

meet e

efits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that
ligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of
a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

t the same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme
at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the entity will

plfilline the present obligations represented by the liability

society

scheme

is meas

incur in

l5
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t6

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

j) Contingent liabilities

The Entitl'does not recognizc a contingent liability but discloses details olany contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually iertain that an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,
the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in
which the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains neserves in terms of specific requirements. .

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectivety. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
impractical.

m) Employee benelits - Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for is employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions ifthe fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employie benefiti relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions io fund obligations forihe
payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benelit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit mltloa
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.
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S ummqy of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on
the dato of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are
reported at the statement offinancial position reporting date by applying the eichange rate on
th-at datt. Exchange differences arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting
of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the periodl
are recqnized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowlng costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and
equipmpnt. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capltalization ceases when
construqtion of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of
financid performance.

p) Related parties

The En(ity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individrlally or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.
Membets of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the
CEO an[ senior managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or leis, which are
readily Oonvertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in valuei. Bank account balances include amounts held ar the Central Bank of Kenya anJat
various bommercial banks at the end ofthe financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial
stateme+ts, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to
authorisfd public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at
the end Ofthe financial year.

r) Comparative figures

Where {ecessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

t7



Summary of Significanl Accounting policies (Continued)

5. Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IpSAS requires
m^anagement to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported ambunts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the diiclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end ofthe reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptioni and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods.

State alljudgements, estimates and assumptions made e.g.

a) Estimates and assumptions -
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carry'ing
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are desiribed below. The Entit!
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ociur. IpsAS 1.140.

b) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity

) The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

) The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

) Availability of funding to replace the asset

) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

c) Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Notes.

The provisions for doubtful debts were raised as per The Laikipia county Enterprise fund
Regulation 2020 section 27 provisions as stated below;

Laikipia Counfy Enterprise Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Normal provision 1Yo

Watch (30-60 days) 3%
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6. Notes To The Financial Statements

l. Public contributions and donations

2. Transfers from Counfy Government

The transfers allocated to the entity in the Fy 2022/23

3. Fines, penalties and other levies

4. Interest income

inlerest income earned from new loans issued by the entity

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs

Donation From Development Partners

Contributions From The Public

Total

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Transfers from County Govt. - Operations

Transfers from County Govt r 0,000,000

Total 10,000,000

Description 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Late Payment Penalties

Fines

Total

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs

Interest Income From Loans r 33,800 I,405,200

Interest lncome On Bank Deposits

1,405100
The

20

Kshs

2022-2023

Kshs

Total Interest Income 133,800
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Notes the Financial Statements Continued

5 tncome

6. Em loyee Costs

7. Use f Goods and Services

to the total administration costs of the find incwred dwing the FY2022/2023

2022-2023 202t-2022
Desc tion

Kshs

Insurance Recoveries

{ from Sale of Tender DocumentsIncom

Bad d*s recovered
1

Miscellaneous Income

Total ther Income

2022-2023 2021-2022
Descril rtion

Kshs Kshs

Salarier i And Wages

Social iSecurity Contribution

Total

2022-2023 2021-2022Descri I rtion
Kshs. Kshs.

Genera Oflice Expenses

Hospitz lity Costs I13,050

Loan Pr ocessing Costs 40,600 45,120

Trainin g Costs 300,000 304,200

Admini stration Expense 584,630

Commi Itee Allowances 258,700
Fuel Ar Ld Oil Costs 21,893 69,000
Postagr And Courier 900 I,500
Printinl And Stationery 110,827

Telepht ,ne And Communication Expenses 73,900

Bank C larges 4,445 23,402
Accruer I board allowances 154,300

Total 1,435,445 1399,757

This

2l

Kshs

234,550

343,000

30,900

66,285

54,000
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8. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

The depreciation expense for Computers and offce equipment al 3096 p.a

9. Finance costs

10. Gain(loss) on disposal of assets

I l. Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value Investments

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Description 2022-2023 202t-2022
Kshs. Kshs.

PropeQ Plant and Equipment 20,715 29,593
Intangible Assets

Total 20,715 29,593

Description
2022-2023 202t-2022

Kshs Kshs

Interest On Bank Overdrafts

lnterest On Loans From Banks

Total

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Property, Plant and Equipment

Description 2022-2023

Kshs Kshs
nvestments at Fair Value- u investments
air value- other financial assets s I

otal Gain

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Current Account t9,923,409 r 5,065,203

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 19,923,409 15,065,203

22

Total

2021-2022



Laiki
Annu

County Enterprise Fund
rt and Financial Statements for the r ended June 30, 2023

Detail analysis of the cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

13. Receivables from Exchange transactions

14. vables from Non-Exchange transactions

Finan lal Institution Account number
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs

a) Current Account
Kenya Commercial Bank 1176375156 19,923,409 r 5,065,203
Sub- Total 19,923,409 15,065r03

Grand Total 19,,923,409 15,065103

Desc r iption 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs
Cu rre rnt Receivables

Bal b/d 15,850,459 r 6,420,880
New I )ans 2,230,000 I1,710,000
lntere: ;t Receivable 133,800 1,405,200

C u rrer tt Loan Repayments - Principal (7,861,455) (12,024,162)

(47 t,687) (721,450)

Less: . Provision for Bad Debts (s,217,919) (940,00e)
Less: !,lon-exchange transaction

Total Current Receivables 4,663,199 15,850,459

Non-( urrent Receivables

Long erm Loan R ents Due

Total on- Current Receivables

Total eceivables From Exchan e Transactions 4,663,199 15,850,459

2022-2023 2021-2022
I)csc n

Kshs Kshs

Current Receivables

T from County Executive 17,374,000

Total Current receivables 17"374,000 11374,000

l(.shs

Curreft Loan Repayments - Interest

17,374,000

23
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Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

15. Prepayments

16. Inventories

17. Investments in financial assets

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Prepaid Rent

Prepaid Electricity Costs

Total

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Consumable Stores

Spare Parts And Meters

Catering

Other lnventories (Specifu )

Total Inventories at The l,ower of Cost and Net
Realizable Value

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs
Investment in Treasu
Financial institution
CBK
CBK

Investment with Financial InstitutionV Banks
Bank x
Bank

ut investments s

shares Enul In t
Sub- total
Grand total

24

Prepaid Insurance

bills and bonds

Sub- total

Sub- total
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d)M ement of Equity Investments

2022-2023 202t-2022t allowance/ provisionIm
Kshs Kshs

AIIT be car
of investments in the ar

sm investments durin the ar G) C)
r value of investments through surplus oloss) in fai

defic
Gai

rAt rh end of the

Number of shares

Nominal
value of
shares

Fair
value of
shares

Fair
value of
shares

eNam
Entitl
invest
held

of
where

ment is
Direct

shareholding
Indirect

shareholding
Effective

shareholding
Current

year
Prior
year

o//o o//o o//o Kshs Kshs Kshs
Entity I
Entity E

Entity C

EE
IEIEII
f{lls

25

e) Shareholding in other entities

of the
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

18. Property, plant and equipment

Land end
Buildings Motor vehicles

Furniture and
fittings

Computers and
oflice equipment Total

Cost Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
At l"t July 2021 98.644 98,644
Additions
Disposals
Transfers/Adi ustments
At 30rh ,lune2022
At I'r July 2022 69,05r 69,051

Additions
Disposals
Transfer/Adiustments
At 30th Jtne2022
Depreciation And Impairment
At lstJuly 2021 (100,189) (100,189)

Depreciation (29,593) (29,,593\

Impairment
At 30rh June2022 (129,782) (129,782)

At l"t July 2022 (129,782\ (129,782)

Depreciation (20,715) (20,715)

Disposals
Impairment
Transfer/Ad_iustment
At 30'h June 2023 (150,497) (150,497)

At 30rh June2022 69,051 69,051

At 30th June 2023 48,336 48J36

26

Kshs

Net Book Values
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Notes o The Financial Statements (Continued)

19. In ible assets

20. In tment Property

2022-2023 202t-2022Descr iption
Kshs Kshs

Cost

A( Be linnin8 of The Year

Additi ons

At EN d ofThe Year

Amor lization And Impairment

At Be ginning of The Year

Amon ization

At En d ofThe Year

IImpai ment lrss
At End ofThe Year
NBV

2022-2023 202t-2022Descri; rtion
Kshs

At beg nning ofthe year

Additic ,ns

Dispos rl during the year

Deprec ation

Impain t
Gair/(l
elected'

lss) in fair value (if fair value is

At end of the year

27

Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

21. Accounts and other payables from erchange transactions

22. Provisions

23. Borrowings

2022-2023
Description

Kshs Kshs
Balance Brou t Forward 26,000

l41,ment of Accounts payables (26,000)

Accrued Expenses 154,300

Total Accounts and Other Payables r54J00

o/o of tbe
Total 2021-2022

o/o ol the
Total

Under one year Yo o/o

I -2 years 154,300 o/o lO0o/o

2-3 years o/o %

Over 3 years % %

Total (tie to above total) 154"300 I I

a

I

Leave
provision

Bonus
provision

Other
provision TotalDescription

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Balalce At the Beginning Of The Year

Additional Provisions

Provision Utilised

Change Due To Discount And Time Value
For Money

Transfers From Non -Current Provisions

Balance At The End of The Year III

Description 2022-2023 202t-2022

Kshs

Balance At n nIn of The Period

During the Year

Domestic B s Durin the Year

Balance At End of The Period

28

202t-2022

Ageing analysis (Accounts and
other payables) 2022-2023

Kshs

External Borrowings

Repayments Of Extemal Borrowings During the Period

Repayments Of Domestics Borrowings During the Period
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The tab below shows the classification of borrowings into external and domestic borrowings:

The below shows the classification of borrowings long-term and current borrowings:

2021-2022

Kshs
Desc tion

External Borrowings

Dollar Denominated Loan From 'X Organization'

Sterling Pound Denominated Loan From 'Y
Organization'

Euro Denominated Loan from Z Organization'

Domettic Borrowings

Kenya Shilling Loan From KCB

Kenya Shilling Loan from Barclays Bank

Kenya Shilling Loan from Consolidated Bank

Borrowings From Other Government Institutions

Total Balance at End of The Year

2021-20222022-2023

Kshs Kshs
Description

Sho(' ferm Borrowings (Current Portion)

Total

Other
Provisions

In se rt
Current FY

Insert
Comparativ

eFY

Desc r iption Defined
benefit
plan

Post
employme
nt medical

benefits

Kshs Kshs KshsKshs Kshs
Curre
ObliE

rt Benefit
rtion

Non-(
Bene{

)urrent
it Oblieation

Total

29

24. Employee benefit obligations

2022-2023

Kshs

Long Term Borrowings
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Description
2021-2022

KShs KShs

Balance Brought forward 153,998 52,248
Additional loan overpayment 36,209 117,250

Refunds ofoverpayment ( r 2,200)

Loan overpayment Offset on loans

r90201 153,998

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Loans overpayment

This represents Unclaimed loan overpayments and unlqown deposits inlo the Fund's bank

26. Provision for Doubtful Debts

The provisionfor bad debts ofthe entity in the FY 2022/2023

27. Changes in Provisions for Bad Debts

Changes in provisionfor bad debtsfrom FY202l/2022 to Fy2022/2023

28. Additional Loans overpayment

Loan overpayments and unlotown deposits in the Fund bank accounl

2022-2023 2021-2022
Description KShs KShs
Provision for bad debts for the year 940,009
Total provisions 5,217,glg 940,009

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs

14,424,697 9,206,778
Provisions for Doubtful Debts - Start A (9,206,778) (8,266,769)
Total @-A) 5217,919

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

36,209 117,250
Refunds & offsetting of Loan
overpayments to loan balances

(15,500)

Total 36,209 101,750

2022-2023

(3,300)

Total Overpayments

accounl.

5,217,919

KShs
Provisions for Doubtful Debts - End B

940,009

Additional Loans overpayment

30
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Notes Io The Financial Statements (Continued)

29. Chrnges in Accounts Payables

Sodal Benelit Liabilities30

Descri ption
2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Decret
expenl

tse in Accrued expenses -Administration
ies

(26,000)

lncrea
expent

le in Accrued expenses -Administration
ies

Net C hange (26,000)

2022-2023
Descr ption

Kshs

Healtl social benefit scheme

Unerq ,loyment social benefit scheme

Elderl y social benefit scheme

Bursar y social benefits

Total
Currer rt social benefits

Non- r lurrent social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

2022-2023 2021-2022
ripDesc tion

Kshs Kshs

M s/ (Deficit) For the Year Before Tax

Effi For:

ationE
lE?ll!fr for doubtful debts

rtrtil g Capital Adjustments

rilrl! ln Interest Receivables

ln Interest Receivables

m ln Transfer receivables

Decre{se In Accounts Payables

Net Crsh Flow From Operating Activities

@
E@
@
@
@
@
@
@

3l

31. Cash generatd from operations

2021-2022

Kshs

Orphaned and vulnerable benefit scheme
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a) Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the Fund include those parties who have ability to exercise
control or exercise significant influence over its op€rating and financial decisions. Related
parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members. The fund/is
related to the following entities:

a) The County Government;
b) The County Government Department of Finance;
c) Key management;
d) Board of Trustees; etc.

b) Related party transactions

c) Key management remuneration

d) Due from related parties

Description
2022-2023 202t-2022

Kshs Kshs

Transfers From Related Parties'

Transfers To Related Parties

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Board Of Trustees

Total

Description
2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs

Due From Parent Ministry

Due From County Govemment t7,374,000 17,374,000

Total 17J74,000 17374,000

32

Notes To The Finsncial Statements (Continued)

32. Related party balances

Kshs
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parties

t assets and contingent liabilities

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Ministry

Govemment

Management Personnel

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

the Fund

ET
ryr
E&I
:
ry
;Iil
-iliTI

tr
@
@E
@

E
@EE

;t
E
Bl

I

JJ
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

34. Financial risk management

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Fund's overall risk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the
potential adverse eflect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.
The Fund does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only
extended to customers with an established credit history.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

a) Credit risk

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limis are set based on internal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, istimated by
the entity's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
economic environment. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

Description
Total
amou nt
Kshs

Fully
performing
Kshs

Past due
Kshs

Impai
red
Kshs

At 30 June 2022

Receivables From Exchange
Transactions 15,850,459 7,628,244 8,222,215
Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

12,374,000 r 0,000,000

Bank Balances 15,065,203 15,065,203

43,289,662 32,693,447 10,596,215

At 30 June 2023

Receivables From Exchange
Transactions

3,723,199

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

r0,000,000

Bank Balances 19,923,409 19,923,409

Total 41,960,607 18314,009

2,374,000

Total

4,663,199 940,009

17,374,000 17,374,000

33,646,598

34
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short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
anages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

year ended June 30, 2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

The cuptomers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the entity has recogrised in the financial statements is considered
adequale to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The enfity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from none.

The board of trustees sets the Fund's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

b) Liquidify risk management

Ultim{e responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Fund Administrator, who
has bullt an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entlty
entity

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Fund under non-derivative financial
liabilitips by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Less than I
month

Between 1-
3 months

Over 5
months TotalDescr iption

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2023

Trade b I esyaPa

Currerrt Portion Of Borrowings

Provir ;lons

Emplt )yee Benefit Obligation

Total

Ar 30 June2022

Trade Payables

Curre: il Portion Of Borrowings

Provir rions

Empk )yee Benefit Obligation

Total

35
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a

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

c) Market risk

The board has put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intern;l
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and foreigr exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exPosures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Fund's Finance Deparhnent is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-today implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

i. Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and
conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the entity's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Description
0ther
currencies Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2023

Financial Assets

Investments

Cash

DebtorV Receivables

Liabilities

Trade And Other Payables

Borrowings

Net Foreign Currency AsseU(Liability)

36
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ly analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
B rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the
r. Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the
tt of comprehensive income if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one
ge point as a decrease/increase. A rate increase/decrease of 5% would result in a
/increase in profit before tax

Notes fo The Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreigl curency sensitivity analysis

'l'he following table demonstrates the eff'ect on the Fund's statement of financial pertbrmance
on applyingthe sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate ofthe three
main tslnsaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse would also
occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

Desc n

Change in

currency rate
Elfect on surplus/
deficit

Elfect on

equity

Kshs Kshs Kshs

(Current FY)

10%

l0o/o

(Comparative FY)

lOYo

100

Intf,est rate risk

Interest Fate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a
result o{changes in interest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.
This e$,oses the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises
mainly from interest rate movements on the Fund's deposits.

Manasfen of interest rate risk

To mar$ge the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
offer fariourable interest rates.

Sensilil/lty analysis

The Fur'{d analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
analysis,i This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifu. The

ll.

sensitivit
exchangr
prior yea

stat€men
percental
decrease

37
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Description
FY 2022-23

Kshs

Revaluation reserve

Revolving fund

Accumulated surplus

Total funds

Total borrowings

Less: cash and bank balances

Net debt/(excess cash and cash equivalents)

Gearing

35. Events after the reporting period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

36. Ultimate and Holding Entity

The entity is a County Public Fund established by Laikipia County Enterprise Fund Act under

the Department of Finance (originally under Departrnent of Trade). Its ultimate parcnt is the

County Govemment of Laikipia.

37. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

38

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

d) Copital risk management.

The objective of the Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concem. The entity capital structure comprises of the foltowing funds:

w 2021-2022

Kshs
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s

: Progress on Follow Up Of Prior Year Auditor's Recommendations

The fo owing is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments

that provided to the auditor.

Refen
ot

exter!
Rr

Bnce No.

t the
tal audit
tpoft

Issue /
Obsenations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Status:
(R*olved /

Nol
R.esolwd)

Timeframe:

Not Resolved

OAG
LKP.
02tD

ERO/
ENT/2
2(23)

Unsecured
Non-

Performance
Loans-On 17

September 2021,

a facility to

purchase a block
machine of
Ksh.750,000

was issued to be

repaid within 24

monthly
instalments.

However, only
Ksh.7,000 had

been repaid by
November 2022

implying that the

loan was more

than 13 months

in arrears. In

addition, the

loan was not

secured by an

executed chattel

for the asset.

The fund officers visited

the Mr. Reuben Mugo

Michire (borrower) and

established that he had

encountered delays due

to slow installation of a 3

phase power line to

operate the machine.

This delayed production

operation for
approximately

3months.The officers

have since then followed
up with the borrower
with regards to

subsequent loan

repayments anears and

issued him with demand

letters to which he has

not responded as yet.

June2024

UERO/
C.ENT/2

122(23)

OAG/
LKP.(
02tDt

Lack of Debt
Management
and Bad Debt
Policies- The

Statement of
Financial

Position reflects

long term

The debt management

and bad debts policies

are contained in Laikipia
County Enterprise Fund

Regulations 2020 from

Section 12 to Section

27.In addition, the

management resolved to

Resolved

39
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Reference No.

on the
external audit

Report

Issue /
Observations
from Auditor

Management

commeDts

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:

receivables from
transactions

balance of
Kshs.15,850,459

as disclosed in
note 12 to the
financial

stat€ments.

develop a separate debt

management policy
which is included in the

current fi nancial year's

budget awaiting release

of funds for the

procurement of an ideal
debt management policy

(

L{F lir s
r UHO

€

(
rp "a?3

o
-o

Evelyn Mbugua
Fund Administrator

Date..

I

40
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Annex II: Inter-Fund Confirmation Letter
Loikipia Coun Fund

The Laikipia County Enterprbe Fund wishes to confirm the amounts no amounts were disbursed to any entity as at 306 June 2023 as

indicated in the table below. Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table
below Please sigr and stamp this request in the space provided and retum it to us.

Confirmation of amounts received by N/A

Amounts Disbursed bv fN/Al (Kshs) as at 30s June 2023 Amount Received
byN/A

(KShs) as at 306
Jtune2023

(E)

Differences
(KShs)

(F)-{D-E)Date
Disbursed

Recurrent (A) Development (B) Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total
(D)=(A+B+C)

N/A NIL

Total

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

Hesd of Accountants department of beneficiary Fund:

4t

Reference
Number
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Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Erpenditures

Project
Name

Project
Description

Project
Obiectives

Project
Activities

Source Of
Funds

Implementing
Partners

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

42
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rting on Disaster Managemen t ExpenditureAnnex IV: Repo

Comments
(Kshs.)require expenditure reporting

ofdisaster
itemprogramme Type

I g rym

43

Column I Column III Column IV

Programme Disaster


